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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Iconkrishi Institute of Medical
Sciences Private Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2023, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2023, its profit including other comprehensive loss, its cash flows and the changes in equity
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the Ind AS financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.
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Responsibility of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

Oor error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
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concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended,;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure 2” to this report;

(g) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2023;
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(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

ii.

iii.

V1.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 2.24 to the Ind AS financial statements;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, , no funds

have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, , no funds
have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

Dividend declared and paid by the Company during the year on redemption of redeemable
preference shares is in compliance with Section 123 of the Act.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the
Company only w.e.f. April 1, 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Wi

Partner

Membership Number: 102328
UDIN: 23102328BGSBME9998
Place of Signature: Hyderabad

M\{//?

per Navneet Rai Kabra

Date: May 16, 2023
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Annexure ‘1’ referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited ("the Company')

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our

knowledge and belief, we state that:

(@)

(i)

(iii)

a)

b)

b)

b)

A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangibles assets.

All fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year but
there is a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company
is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are held
in the name of the Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of
use assets) or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2023.

There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and
rules made thereunder.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year. In our opinion the coverage and the procedure of such verification by
the management is appropriate. There were no discrepancies of 10% or more in
aggregate tor each class of inventory.

The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. Five crores
in aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on
the basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans,
stood guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships
or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(2) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the year the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees, provided
security and granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(iii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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c)

d)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii) a)
b)

(viii)

The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(iii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to [companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties]. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(iii)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions
of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any
amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the
Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant
to the rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under
section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, related to the medical and healthcare
services, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records have
been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the
same.

The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it. According to the information
and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the
year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income tax, cess, and other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of
any dispute.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded
in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as
income during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in
the payment of interest thereon to any lender.
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b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

c) Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds
raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the
Company.

e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture.

Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

f) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

) a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer
/ further public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report
on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
/fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit
and hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(xi) a) No fraud/ material fraud by the Company or no fraud / material fraud on the Company
has been noticed or reported during the year.

b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 has been filed by cost auditor, secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT —
4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with
the Central Government.

c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

(xii) a) The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

b) The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(b) of the Order is not
applivable w the Culnpany.

¢) The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.
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(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

a) The Company has implemented internal audit system on a voluntary basis which is
commensurate with the size of the Company and nature of its business though it is
not required to have an internal audit system under Section 138 of the Companies

Act, 2013.

b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for
the period under audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

a) The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934)
are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without obtained a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve
Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made
by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement
to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 2.38 to the financial statements,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of
the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet
as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.
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(xx) a) Inrespect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required
to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the Act), in
compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This matter
has been disclosed in note 2.35 to the financial statements.

b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be
transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section
135 of Companies Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 2.35 to the financial

statements.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

(N%m(& . kel

per Navneet Rai Kabra

Partner

Membership Number: 102328
UDIN: 23102328BGSBME9998
Place of Signature: Hyderabad
Date: May 16, 2023
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ICONKRISHI INSTITUTE OF MEDICAL
SCIENCES PRIVATE LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Iconkrishi
Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction
with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial

statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Ndmu} o, —

per Navneet Rai Kabra
Partner

Membership Number: 102328
UDIN: 23102328BGSBME9998
Place of Signature: Hyderabad
Date: May 16, 2023




Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited
CIN: Us5110AP2018PTC108133
Balance sheet as at 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill
Other Intangible assets
Right-of-use Assets
Financia! assets

(i) Other financial assets
Deferred tax assets (net)
Non-current tax assets (net)
Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables
(i} Cash and cash equivalents
(iii) Other financial assets
Other current assets

Total current assels

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Equity share capital

Instruments entirely equity in nature
Other equity

Total equity

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Lease liabilities
(ii) Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Deferred tax liability (net)

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Lease liabilities
(iii) Trade payables
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises; and
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Other current liabilities
Current tax liability (net)
Total current liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Significant accounting policies

Note

21 (a)
236
2.1(c)
225

2.10 (2)

2.10 (b)
2.10 (c)

2.11(a)
225
2,12 (a)
2.13
233

2.11(b)
225
214

2.12 (b)
2.15
216 (b)

13

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

333.70 16739
5598 5598
2.71 3,63
37.43 =
422 559
- 11.67
3634 15.47
6.40 6.67
476.78 266.40
2031 19.49
192.55 11124
337 7.92
536 567
5.09 4.99
226.68 149.31
703.46 415.72
0.10 0.10
9500 100,00
164.50 101.20
259.60 201.30
21607 70.11
36.66 .
0.05 0.05
1.24 =
0.77 x
254.79 70.16
62.15 3491
279 .
835 821
8552 6348
10.33 1824
7.83 7.90
12.10 11.50
189.07 144.24
703.46 415.72

The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report attached of even date

for S.R.Batliboi & Associztes LLP
Chartered Accountants
TCAI Firm Registration no.: 101049W/ E300004

\
per Naviget Rai Kabra

Partner
Membership no : 102328

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 16 May 2023

T

Satish Kumar P
Managing Director
DIN: 02120652

o 2 \x.u-wg
o) «:./"3' ="
Sanapala Srinivas
Chief financial officer

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 16 May 2023

Jor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sgiences Private Limited

Q.A.Ml
Cl nilarini

Director
DIN: 00356392




Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited
CIN: U85110AP2018PTC108133
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

Revenue
Revenue from operations
Other income

Total income

Expenses

Purchase of medical consumables, drugs and surgical instruments
Increase in inventories of medical consumables, drugs and surgical
instruments

Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Other expenses

Total expenses
Profit before tax

Tax expense

- Cwirent tax

- Deferred tax expense/(credit)

- Adjustments of tax relating to earlier year
Total tax expense

Profit for the year (A)

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss
- Re-measurement loss on defined benefit plans

- Income-tax effect

Other comprehensive loss, net of tax (B)

Total comprehensive income for the year (A+B)

Earnings per share (face value of share Rs. 10 each)
- Basic
- Diluted

Significant accounting policies

For the year ended

For the year ended

LU 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
217 1,073.16 1,054.97
2.18 522 497
1,078.38 1,059.94
24920 251.76
== (0.82) (4.26)
2.20 217.24 187.93
221 2241 11.80
222 3188 1855
193 468.93 39226
988.84 858.04
89.54 201.91
233 1625 59.62
233 747 (11.52)
233 (0.68) 3
23.04 45.10
6.50 153.81
(0.84) 0.55)
021 0.15
(©.63) (0.40)
65.87 153.41
228
5,509.92 14,181.00
5.79 14.17
13

The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements
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Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited

CIN: U85110AP2018PTC108133

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

I. Cash flows from operating activities:

Profil before tax

Adjustments for operating activities:

Depreciation and amortisation expenses

(Reversal)/provision for expected credit loss for trade receivable (net of bad debts)
Lease income

Interest income

Liabilities no longer required written back

Finance costs

Operating cash flows before working capital changes

Adjustments for:

Increase in trade receivables

Increase in inventories

Decrease/(increase) in financial and other assets

Increase/(decrease) in trade payables, other financial liabilities, provisions and other liabilities
Cash generated from operations

Income-taxes paid, net of refund

Net cash flows generated from operating activities (A)

IL. Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Redemption of bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three months)
Investment in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three months)
Lease income

Interest received

Net cash flows used in investing activities (B)

IIL. Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of long-term borrowings

Proceeds of long-term borrowings

Proceeds from long-term borrowings taken from related party (refer note 2.27)
Repayment of long-term borrowings taken from related party (refer note 2.27)
Proceeds of short-term borrowings(net)

Proceeds from redemption of 12% lative optionally convertible redeemable preference shares
Dividend paid on redemption of preference shares

Payment of lease obligations

Finance cost

Net cash flows used in from financing activities (C)

Net Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Note:

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

89.54 201.91
31.88 18.55
(2259) 19.09
(0.29) (0.16)
(1.05) (0.03)
(0.52) (3.51)
2241 11.80
119.37 247.65
(58.72) (50.18)
(0.82) (4.26)
.02 (9-06)
23.15 (17.29)
83.00 166.86
(30.61) (54.26)
52.39 112.60
(190.81) (3541)
(0.35) 029
= 027)
0.29 0.16
- 0.03
(190.87) (35.20)
(23.29) (21.57)
174.91 -
70.00 =
(60.00) (85.00)
11.57 1235
(5.00) -
(2.57) -
(5.52) -
(26.17) (8.95)
133.93 (103.17)
(4.55) (25.77)
7.92 35.69
3.37 7.92

a) The standalone statement of cash flows has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Indian accounting Standard (Ind 7)-Statement of cash flows:

b) Cash and cash equivalents comprises of:

Cash on hand
Balances with banks
- in current accounts
Total

Tl acompuny g notes sefiard o ubove forin w iitegral part of the finaneial atatemcnts
As per our report attached of even date
for S.R.Batliboi & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICALFirm Registration no.: 101049W/ E300004 P

per ’ﬂntﬂmzrﬁ&:

Purtner
Membership no.: 102328

== .Satish Kumar P
Managing Director
DIN: 02120652

e '.'G'L\J“W.—ﬂ
S p:f-l Srinivas

Chief financial officer

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 16 May 2023

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 16 May 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Jor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited

0.56 0.33

281 7.59

3.37 7.92
Ol

Chebrolu Harini
Director
DIN: 00356392



Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited
CIN: U85110AP2018PTC108133
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

a) Equity share capital

Equity shares of Rs.10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid Number of shares Amount
At 1 April 2021 10,000 0.10
Add: Shares issued during the year - -
At 31 March 2022 10,000 0.10
Add: Shares issued during the year - -
At 31 March 2023 10,000 0.10
b) Instruments entirely equity in nature
12% lative optionally convertible red ble preference shares Number of shares Amount
At 1 April 2021 1,00,00,000 100.00
Add: Shares issued during the year - -
At 31 March 2022 1,00,00,000 100.00
Add: Shares issued during the year (5.00,000.00) (5.00)
At 31 March 2023 95.00,000 95.00
t) Other Equity

Particulars Other equity Total of other equity

Retained earnings Capital
contribution

Balance as at 1 April 2021 (55.83) 3.63 (52.21)
Profit for the year 153.81 - 153.81
Other comprehensive loss for the vear (0.40) - (0.40)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 97.58 3.63 101.20
Profit for the year 66.50 - 66.50
Dividend paid on redeemption of preferance shares (2.57) - (2.57)
Other comprehensive loss for the year (0.63) - (0.63)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 160.88 3.63 164.50

The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report attached of even date

for S.R.Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration no.: 101049W/E300004

amut £l
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Partner
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Date: 16 May 2023

Jfor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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Managing Direclor Director
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Chief financial officer
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Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited

CIN: U85110AP2018PTC108133

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

1.1 Company Overview

Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited (‘the Company’) is private company domiciled in
India and is incorporated on 10 April 2018 under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. The Company
became a subsidiary of Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited with effect from 05 May 2018. The
registered office of the company is located at D No 32-11-02, Sheelanagar, BHPV Post Vishakhapatnam,
Andhra Pradesh, India — 530012.

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of rendering medical and healthcare services.
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 16 May 2023.
1.2  Basis of preparation of financial statements

a) Statement of Compliances:

The financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023, have been prepared in
accordance with requirements of Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS™), as prescribed under Section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as
amended, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India and presentation requirements of
Division II of Schedule III of the Act.

All amounts are in Indian Rupees millions, rounded off to two decimals, except share data, unless otherwise
stated.

b) Basis of measurement:

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Items Measurement basis

Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value or Amortised cost

Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined
benefit obligations

¢) Functional and presentation currency:

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees Rs. which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts are in Indian Rupees millions, rounded off to two decimals, except share data and per
share data, unless otherwise stated.

d) Significant accounting judgement, estimates and assumptions:

The preparation of Company’s financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement
principles of Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported balances of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities, accompanying disclosures and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations that the directors have made
in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the
ounts recognised in the financial statements.



Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited

CIN: U85110AP2018PTC108133

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they
occur.

Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets

The Company uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., by product type, customer type and other forms of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Company’s historical observed default rates. The Company
will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of
forecast economic conditions. The Company’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of customer’s actual default in the future.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level
of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. Refer Note

2.32 —Recognition of deferred tax assets, availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses carried
forward can be used.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present
value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuvarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes
in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. Refer Note 2.26 - Measurement
of defined benefit obligations, key actuarial assumptions.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for
plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds where remaining
maturity of such bond correspond to expected term of defined benefit obligation.




Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited

CIN: U85110AP2018PTC108133

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques
including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but
where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these
factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. See Note 2.32 for further disclosures.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental
borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would
have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects
what the Company ‘would have to pay’, which requires estimation when no observable rates are available or
when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Company estimates the
IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is required to make certain
entity-specific estimates.

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Company as lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods
covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by
an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company
applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to
renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it
to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the
lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its
ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant
leasehold improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset).

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of
disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for
similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use
calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and
do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future
investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is
sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the
growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

Classification of financial instruments as equity




Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited

CIN: U85110AP2018PTC108133

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

The Company has issued 12% cumulative optionally convertible redeemable preference shares (“COCRPS”)
to Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited (“KIMS” or “Holding Company”). As per the terms of the

COCRPS, the Company needs to convert at any time before 7™ year but before 10" year from the date of
issuance or redeem after 2™ year but before the end of 10™ year from the date of issuance, which is in the
control of the Company. Accordingly, the Company has classified and measured the aforesaid instruments
as equity, carried at cost.

e) Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based current and non-current classification.

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

i. it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the company’s normal
operating cycle;

ii.  itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

iit. it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

iv.  itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least 12 months after the reporting date.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

i. it is expected to be settled in the company’s normal operating cycle;

ii.  itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

iit. it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

iv.  the company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting date.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Operating cycle

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash
and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

D Fair value measurement:

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability




Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited

CIN: U85110AP2018PTC108133

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an
asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data is available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the
use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

= Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which
are required to be re measured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this analysis, the
Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the
valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external
sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

Periodically, the Management present the valuation results to the Board of Directors/ Audit Committee and
the Company's independent auditors. This includes a discussion of the major assumptions used in the
valuations.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy

as explained above.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as
possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the
fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair




Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited

CIN: U85110AP2018PTC108133

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period
during which the change has occurred. Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair
values is included in Note 2.32 — financial instruments.

1.3 Significant accounting policies
A. Business combination and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured
as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired, and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their
acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing
present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable.

When the Company acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and
the amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate
consideration transferred, the Company re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets
acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be
recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets
acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCI and accumulated in
equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises the
gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing the same through OCI.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date;,
allocated to each of the Company’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

B. Revenue from contract with customer

The Company’s revenue from medical and healthcare services comprises of income from hospital services
and sale of pharmacy items.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred
to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

Income from hospital services comprises of fees charged for inpatient and outpatient hospital services. The
performance obligations for this stream of revenue include accommodation, surgery, medical/clinical
professional services, food and beverages, investigation and supply of pharmaceutical and related products.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the fixed consideration adjusted for components
of variable consideration which constitutes discounts, estimated disallowances and any other rights and
obligations as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from
customers and deposited back to the respective statutory authorities. Revenue is recognised at the point in
time for the outpatient hospital services when the related services are rendered at the transaction price. With
respect to the inpatients hospital services who are undergoing treatment/ observation on the balance sheet
date, revenue is recognised over the period to the extent of services rendered.

Revenue from sale of pharmacy (other than hospital services), where the performance obligation is satisfied
at a point in time, is recognised when the control of goods is transferred to the customer.

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

The Company applies the most likely amount method or the expected value method to estimate the variable
consideration in the contract. The selected method that best predicts the amount of variable consideration is
primarily driven by the number of volume thresholds contained in the contract. The most likely amount is
used for those contracts with a single volume threshold, while the expected value method is used for those
with more than one volume threshold. The Company then applies the requirements on constraining estimates
in order to determine the amount of variable consideration that can be included in the transaction price and
recognised as revenue.
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Contract balances

Contract assets represents value to the extent of medical and healthcare services rendered to the patients who
are undergoing treatment/ observation on the balance sheet date and is not billed as at the balance sheet date.

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time
is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of Financial instruments
— initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a
customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Company performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services
to the customer).

Other Income

Interest on deposits, loans and debt instruments are measured at amortized cost. interest income is recorded
using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate,
to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortized cost of a financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options)
but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in the statement
of profit and loss.

C. Income tax

The Income-tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit and loss except to
the extent that is relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted
or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the country where the Company operates and generates
taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation
and establishes provisions where appropriate.
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Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e  When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

e In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

e Inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised
to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate recognition
at that date, are recognised subsequently if new information about facts and circumstances change. Acquired
deferred tax benefits recognised within the measurement period reduce goodwill related to that acquisition if
they result from new information obtained about facts and circumstances existing at the acquisition date. If
the carrying amount of goodwill is zero, any remaining deferred tax benefits are recognised in OCI/ capital
reserve depending on the principle explained for bargain purchase gains. All other acquired tax benefits
realised are recognised in profit or loss.
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The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

D. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at original cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and
non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, borrowing costs, if the
recognition criteria are met, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for
its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it
located.

The cost of self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct
labour, any other cost directly attributable to bringing the item to working conditions for its intended use,
and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

When significant parts of Property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company
de-recognises the replaced part, and recognizes the new part with its own associated useful life and it is
depreciated accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the
carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other
repairs and maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Amounts paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding as of each reporting date
are recognised as capital advance and the cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for intended use
before such date are disclosed under capital work-in-progress.

The cost and related accumulated depreciation are de-recognised from the financial statements upon sale or
disposition of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
Amounts paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding as of each reporting date
are recognised as capital advance and the cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for intended use
before such date are disclosed under capital work-in-progress.

De recognition

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the de-
recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the

item is derecognized.
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Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method, based on the useful life of the assets as estimated by
the management. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair
approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used. The Company has estimated the
following useful lives to provide depreciation on its Property, plant and equipment which are in compliance
with the Companies Act, 2013:

Category of Assets Useful life (In years)
Medical and surgical equipment 13

Plant and equipment 15

Office equipment 5

Electrical equipment 10

Computers 3-6

Furniture and fixtures 10

Vehicles 8

Based on the planned usage of certain specific assets and technical assessment, the management has estimated
the useful lives of Property, plant and equipment which are different from the useful life prescribed in
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 for the following:

e Individual asset not exceeding Rs. 5,000 have been fully depreciated in the year of purchase.
e Building is depreciated over 30 years based on the service agreement
e Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the lease term.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. In particular, the Company considers
the impact of health, safety and environmental legislation in its assessment of expected useful lives and
estimated residual values.

E. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets
with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying
value of another asset.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from
mfefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.
So
<
Z
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De recognition

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss. when the asset is derecognised.

Amortisation

The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors including the
effects of obsolescence. demand, competition and other economic factors (such as the stability of the industry
and known technological advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the expected
future cash flows from the asset.

The estimated useful lives of intangibles are as follows:
Category of Assets Useful life (In years)
Software 6

F. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist
of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost
also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

G. Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-
of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the

assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. T'he right-
of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies of Impairment of non-financial

assets.
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ii) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company
exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases
of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis
over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

H. Inventories

The inventories comprising of medical consumables and pharmacy items are valued at lower of cost or net
realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary (o make the sale. Cost includes cost of
purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is
determined on weighted average basis. The comparison of cost and net realisable is made on an item by item
basis.

I. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates
the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating
unlt’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value i in use. The recoverable amount is determined for
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other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If
no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are
prepared separately for each of the Company’s cash-generating units to which the individual assets are
allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations are generally covering a period of five years. For longer
periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an
indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication
exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of
the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such
reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

J. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company
expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the expense relating to a provision is presented in the
statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will he required ta settle the nhligation A contingent lahility alsn arises in axtremely rare cases where there
1s a lhability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured rehiably. ‘Ihe Company does not
recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

A contingent asset is not recognised unless it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits
will arise. When an inflow of economic benefits is probable, contingent assets are disclosed in the financial

statements.
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K. Retirement and other employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution
payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the
contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution
already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution
already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the
balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for
example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Defined benefit plans

The Company’s gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect
of a defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned
and returned for services in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present
value. The calculation of Company’s obligation under the plan is performed annually by a qualified actuary
using the projected unit credit method.

The gratuity scheme is administered by third party. Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability,
which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the
asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income (OCI).

The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined liability (assets) for the period
by applying the discount rate used to measure the net defined obligation at the beginning of the annual period
to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes to the defined benefit liability
(asset) as a result of contribution and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to
defined benefit plans are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The Company recognises gains and
losses in the curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan when the curtailment or settlement occurs.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates
to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss:
e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments
and non-routine settlements; and
o Net interest expense or income

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the relative service
is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short term cash bonus, if
the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of the past service
provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.
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Compensated Absences

As per the leave encashment policy of the Company, the employees have to utilise their eligible leave during
the financial year and lapses at the end of the financial year. Accrual towards compensated absences at the
end of the financial year are based on last salary drawn and outstanding leave absence at the end of the
financial year.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-term
employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that
it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. The Company
recognizes expected cost of short-term employee benefit as an expense, when an employee renders the related
service.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term
employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based
on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year end. Actuarial gains/losses are
immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The obligations are presented as
current liabilities in the Balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement
for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

L. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss. The classification of
financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the
Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under Ind AS 115.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal
amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or
loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in
order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through OCI are held
ithin a business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.
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Subsequent measurement

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
- Financial assets at amortised cost
- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions:

= the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is

calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in interest income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. The Company’s financial assets at
amortised cost includes trade receivables, and loan to an associate and loan to a director included under other
non-current financial assets. For more information on receivables, refer to Note 2.32.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at FVTPL.
On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortised cost at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Derecognition

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not
retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet but retains
either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not
derecognised.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower
of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the company
could be required to repay.

Impairment of financials assets
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Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g., loans, debt securities,
deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.

Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not
increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has
increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument
improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the
entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

The Company considers that there has been a significant increase in credit risk when contractual payments
are more than 30 days past due.

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due.
However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts
in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company. A financial asset is written
off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life
of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the
original EIR.
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Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts and financial guarantee contracts.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:
- Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation

process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of
profit and loss. This category generally applies to borrowings.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

M. Preference shares

12% cumulative optionally convertible redeemable preference shares (“COCRPS”) are accounted as equity
panent based on the terms of the contract. The proceeds are included in equity since shares met Ind AS
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32 criteria for fixed to fixed classification. Transaction costs are deducted from equity, net of associated
income tax. The carrying amount of the conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent years.

N. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts
as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

O. Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to equity shareholders (after
deducting preference dividend) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to equity shareholders (after
deducting preference dividend) for the year relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted
average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average
number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity
shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would
decrease the net profit per share.

P. Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker. The Board of Directors is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments and accordingly is identified as the chief operating decision maker.

Q. Corporate social responsibility

The Company charges its Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure to the statement of profit and
loss.

R. Events after reporting date

Where events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end
of the reporting period, the impact of such events is adjusted within the financial statements. Otherwise,
events after the Balance Sheet date of material size or nature are only disclosed.

S. New and amended standards

The Company applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 Apr 2022. The Company has not early adopted any other standard or
amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective:

— Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards

— Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments Classification, Recognition and Derecognition

— Ind AS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment

— Ind AS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
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T. Standards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted by the Company

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. On
March 31, 2023, the MCA, issued certain amendments to Ind AS. The amendments relate to the following
standards:

- Ind AS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
— Ind AS 1, Income Taxes
— Ind AS 12, Presentation of Financial Statements
These amendments are effective from April 01, 2023. The Company believes that the
- -aforementioned-amendments will not materially impact the financial statements-of the Company.
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(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

2.1(b)

2.1(c)

Capital Work in Progress

Gross Carrying amount
Balance as at

Additions

Capitalised during the year
Balance as at

Intangible assets

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

62.30
62.30

Particulars Software Total
Gross carrying amount

Balance as at 1 April 2021 5.50 5.50
Additions 1.72 1.72
Balance as at 31 March 2022 7.22 7.22
Balance as at 1 April 2022 7.22 7.22
Additions 0.29 0.29
Balance as at 31 March 2023 7.51 7.51
Accumulated amortisation

Balance as at 1 April 2021 2.52 2.52
Amortisation charge for the year 1.07 1.07
Balance as at 31 March 2022 3.59 3.59
Balance as at 1 April 2022 3.59 3.59
Amortisation charge for the year 121 1.21
Balance as at 31 March 2023 4.80 4.80
Carrying amounts (net)

At 31 March 2022 3.63 3.63
At 31 March 2023 2.71 2.71
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As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
2.2 Other financial assets (at amortised cost)
(unsecured, considered good)
Non-current
-To parties other than related parties
Bank deposits due to mature after 12 months of reporting date* 0.81 0.46
Interest accrued on bank deposits 0.05 0.02
Security deposits 3.36 5.11
Total 422 5.59
* Bank deposits placed are restrictive in nature as it pertains to bank guarantee.
2.3 Other financial assets (at amortised cost)
(unsecured, considered good)
Current
-To parties other than related parties
Contract assets (refer note 2.34) 5.36 567
Total 536 5.67
2.4 Other non-current assets
(unsecured, considered good)
-To parties other than related parties
Capital advances 4.06 4.38
Prepaid expenses 2.34 0.92
Total 6.40 5.30
-To related parties
(unsecured, considered good)
Prepaid guarantee commission (refer note 2.27) = 1.37
Total - 1.37
Total 6.40 6.67
2.5 Inventories
(Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)
Medical consumables, drugs and surgical instruments 20.31 19.49

Total 2031 19.49




PTIIT

(r96¢)
88°0S1

1834 3y} Jo pua a1) J8 PduE[ey
$50] J1paI1o PajoadXa JoJ 30UBMO|[Y SS9
18101

88°0SI

vr'0

81°¢

86L

£0°9C

paneduur 31pa1d-sajqeArasal aper], pajndsiq (1a)

S JIpa1d

U] 3seaIoul JUBdIUSIS-S3[qRAIa0aI opeI], pAndsic] (A)
P03 paIaplsu0o-sa[qeAladal apel], papndsic (A1)
paxredulr 31pa1o-53|qeAI2031 aper], pajndsipu (1)

3SII §1paio ul
asearoul juesyiudis-sajqeatanas apei], pajndsipun) (11)

A %4 1189 Po03 paropisuoa-sajqeAtadal aper], pandsipup) (1)

[L2UN R

SIB3A ¢ UBYJ IOIA]

SIBIA €-7

sIBIA 7-1

1834 - syjuowr 9

SY)uowW 9 uey) SSI anp

judwied 30 3jep anp wouy sporiad Suimofjoy 103 Surpueising

jou Jnq uarin) sIg[nanIeg

SS°T61

(soL1)
09°607

T70Z YOLEIA 1€ UO S8 3[NPaYIS UL SIQEAIIIIN apELL

1834 3y} Jo pua 3y} Je Dueeg
SO 11paIo Pa1oadxa 10J 90UBMO|[Y (SS9
€30

09°60Z

¥S'T

90t

PO'pI

9L'91

palredu J1pa10-§3[qeAladal apel], pajndsic (14)

U[ 95B3I0Ul JuBSY1UIs-SA[qRAIAIRI BPEIT, PAINCSI(T (A)
pooJ palepisuoo-sa[qeAraaal aper], pajndsiq (A1)
patreduar 11para-sajqearadsal apes], payndsipup) (1)
asealour JueolIudis-sajqearasal apely, pajndsipun) (11)
PO0T PaJap1suod-5a[qealasal apel], pajndsipup (1)

6695 12811

lejoL

siead ¢ uey) aloy

sIvad ¢-7

S169A 71

1WaK |- Syjuow g

SUIUO UL 9 UKL B5] anp

juawded yo apep anp wouy sportad Fupmo||o) 103 Furpuuising

j0U Juq JuLIny) siglnIed

€707 Y21EIAl [€ U0 S8 3[NPIYdS TUIAHE SI|qEAIIIY FPULL,

'SKED 06 0} O JO SUII3} U A[[eIausd pue Sulresq JS219}UI-UOU I8 SI[QRAIAIZT apRI].

‘JOQUIAUI € 10 J0J0311p € “Iouied ® ST 10J0211p AUB YoIyss ur A[9A:303dsa1

sajueduros ajeAl1d o Uiy Wolj anp 218 B[QEAT300] JaYj0 Jo aper} Aue Jou ‘uosiad Jaiyjo Aue e Apuiof 10 Aj[esaAds Jayyte Auedwiop) ayj JO SI9DIJJ0 JAUJ0 JO SIOJOLIIP WO} SNP A18 J[qRAI299] J3YJ0 10 apes) oN

[ZA1 SST61
YTIIL $S761
(r9'6¢) (so'L1)
88°0S1 09°60T

TTOT Y2BN I€
1esy

ETOTYHEN T€
18 Sy

eior
Juswieduny J1pald 10§ OUBMO[[Y 583
pa1naasuy) - paxredw] J1paiod - S3[qRAISO SPBI],

$SOJ J1paId pa}oadxa 10] SOUBMO[[Y 1SS
paInoasup) - pood paizpisuo)

(paindasup))
(3500 paziIowie J8) SAQBAIIIAI IPRL], 9°T

(Pa1ess asmIayo ssajun 1o wjep 21eys jdaoxa saodiy] UBIPU] JO UOKIUI UL 378 SJUNOWE [[Y)
€207 YIEIAl [€ PIPU 1834 Y} 10] SJUDWIAILYS [BIDUBLLY DY} 0} SIION
EEI80TOLASTOTAYOTISSM NID

P3)yI ULl 9)BALLJ SIDUSIDS [€IIPATA] JO BJNILISU YSII{UGI]



Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited

CIN: U85110AP2018PTC108133
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2.7 Cash and bank balances

a)

b)

2.8

2.9

Cash and cash equivalents

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Cash on hand 0.56 0.33
Balances with banks

- 1n current accounts 281 7.59
Total 3.37 7.92
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
Particulars 1 April 2022 Cash flows Other 31 March 2023
Short term borrowings 12.35 11.57 - 2392
Current and Non- Current lease liabilities - (5.52) 44.97 39.45
Long term borrowings 92.67 161.62 - 254.29
Total liabilitics from financing activitics 105.02 167.67 44.97 317.65
Particulars 1 April 2021 Cash flows Other 31 March 2022
Short term borrowings - 12.35 - 12.35
Long term borrowings 199.24 (21.57) - 92.67
Total liabilities from financing activities 199.24 (9.22) - 105.02
Non-current tax assets (net)
Advance tax [net of provision for taxation) 36.34 1547
Total 36.34 1547
Other current assets
(Unsecured, considered good)
Advance to suppliers 0.54 0.23
Prepaid expenses 4.26 293
Staff advances 0.18 001
Other Receivables 0.11 -
Gratuity fund - 130
Prepaid guarantee commission (refer note 2.27) - 0.52
Total 5.09 4.99
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2.10 (a) Equity share capital
Authorised Equity shares

Asat
31 March 2022

Asat
31 March 2023

100.000 (31 March 2022: 100,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 cach 1, 100
Lun 1.00
Issued, subseribed und paid-up
10,000 (31 March 2022: 10,000) equity shares of Rs 10 each. fully paid-up 010 010
0.10 0.10
i) Reconvilintinn of mumber of eouity shares of ReJ8 s ik e the eml of the vrar:
Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
No of shiares Amyumt Wi, ol shures Amount
At the commencement of the year 10,000 010 10,000 010
_Shares jssued during the sear = = <
Shares vutstaniding st the end of the vear 10,000 LI LRI e

il) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached tv equily shares of Rs.10 each, fully paid

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par valuc of Rs. 10 per share. Each equity share holder is entitled 1o one vote per cquity share held. In the event of liquidation of the

y, alter di

of all

company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
number of cquity shares held by the shareholders

Wi} Particnlies of shareholifers baldine sire thon S8 o =

amounts. The distribution will be in proporlion to the

Nume of shareholder

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Ny, of shares %% of Wolding No, of sheres "% of Holding
Krizhna Initituie of Medical Sciences Limited 5,100 51.00% 5100 FL00%
Satish Kamar P 3,00 3200% 3100 3100%
T Sai Balarama Krishng Tl 7005 Fiil] T
iv) Exuity shares of Ra10) cach, fully pald of the Company held by holding cumpany
Name of shareholder As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
No, ol shares Anmimt Nt af shares Amiint
Faighing Instivate of Medieal Sciences Liriited 3100 0.65 310 0 os
¥) The Company has not issued botus sharcs during the period of five years i diatel: fing the period.
vi) The Company has not bought back any shares during the period of five years i iately ding the reporting period
vil) Details of sharcs held by Promoters*
As at 31 March 2023
No of shares z i - -
5. No, Particnlurs Promoter milne a4t Beginming of Chige during No bl ateml 4 o tutal shiares e chinge ihirlng
EArdtiding the year ul the year the year
I Equity sharee of Rs. 10 cach fully paid Ll:uh:u iu.m{.m: of Medical 5,100 . 5.100 5100% 000%
sciences Limited
2 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid Dr P Satish Kumar 3,200 - 3200 32.00% 0.00%
3 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid Dr Titty Sai Balaram Krishna 700 - 700 7.00% 0.00%
Tatal 9,000 - RALI THLNS -
As at 31 Murch 2022
No of shares Ch . B =
S. No. Particulars Promoter name at beginning of e during N of shures ut end % of (otal shares * chunge during
P the year of the year the year
1 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid hu:ulu:n lliFliFLHt of Medital 5,100 . 5100 5100% 0.00%
sciences Limited
2 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid Dr P Satigh Kumar 3,200 - 3,200 3200% 0.00%
3 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid Dr Titty Sai Balaram Krishna 700 - 700 7.00% 0.00%
Tatal 2,006 - S00 L =

* Promoters are as per the annual return filed by the Compiny
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2.10 (b) Instruments entirely equity in nature

Authorised
Cumulative o v convertihle red ble preference shares
10,000,000 (31 March 2022: 10.000,000) 12% cumulative optionally conycrlible redcemable prefercnce shares of Rs 10000 100.00
10 cach
100.00 100.00
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
Cu i ionally convertible r preference shares
9.500.000 (3! March 2022: 10.000,000) 12% ivc optionally conertible red ble p shares of Rs. 10 95.00 10000
cach. fully paid-up
95.00 100.00
i) Reconciliation of number of 12% ty convertihle preference shares (COCRPS) of Rs.10 each, fully paid outstanding at the beginning and at the end
of the year:
Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
No. of shares Amouni No. of shares Amount
At the commcncement of the year 1.00.00.000 100 00 1.00.00.000 100 00
Redecmed during (he vear (5.00.000) (5.00) = -
95,00,000 95.00 1,00,00,000 100.00
i) Rights, preferences and restrictions a(tached to 12% i i v convertible r preference shares (COCRPS) of Rs.10 each
COCRPS were jeened at nar on 19 March 2010 1n ite parsnt zomnam: Frich=z In. 1 Ligit=4,COCPDE

preferential right of dividend over equity sharcholders. Following are the terms and conditions:

i. The COCRPS can be converted into 10,000,000 cquity shares of Rs, 10/~ each at par (i.c. cach COCRPS shall be converted into 1 (one) Equity Share of the Company at any Lime afler the
7th year but before 10th year from the date of issuance and allotment of the COCRPS at the sole oplion of the Company supporied by the resolution passed by all the dircctors unanimously in
a Board Mecting and approval by all the sharcholders (equity) in a General Meeting

ii. The COCRPS will be redeemable (in multipic tranches or single tranche) at the option of the Company by way of (i) conversion of CORCPS aficr 7th vear but before 10th year from the
date of issuance and allotment of the COCRPS based on the valuation certificate obtained from the Chartered Accountant or Merchant Banker as the case may be or (i) payment after 2nd year
but before the end of 10th year from the date of issuance. The COCRPS will only be redeemed at par i.e at which such COCRPS are issued (ie, Rs. 10 per COCRPS aggregating to Rs
10,00.00,000), and no other premium will be payable at the time of redemption, However, accumulated dividend will be paid before redemption at the option of the Company

In current year Krishna Tnstitute of Medical Scicnces Limited (Holding Company) redeemed 500,000 shares and received dividend of Rs. 2 57 on redeemption of preference shares

iii) Pavtleulars of sharchulders bolding more than 5% of 12% cumulotive uptionally conyvertibile redeemable préference shiares (COCRPS) of Rs.10 cach
Name of shareholder As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
No. of shares e ol Huldi N, of shures o ol Holding
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 95,00,000 1,00,00,000 100.00%
iv) 12% cumulative optinnally convertble redeemahle preference shares (COCRPS) of K0 each ol the Campiny hield by halding eompany
Name of sharcholder As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Nu. of shares Amount Nu. of shares Amount
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 95.00,000 100.00 1.00.00.000 100.00
As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

210 (¢) Other equity

Capital contribution

Balance as per last financial stalemenis 363 363
Movement during he year - -
Closing balance 3.63 3.63
Retained earnings
Balance as per last financial statements 97.58 (35.83)
Add: Profit for the year 66,50 153.81
Add: Dividend distributed Q57 -
Add: Other comprehensive loss for the year (0.63) (0.40)
Closing balance 160.88 97.58
16450 101.20

Natwre and purpase of reserves:

(i) Retained earnings

Retained camings are the profits/(loss) that the Company has camed/incurred (i}l date. less any transfers o general reserve. divid or other distributions paid to sharcholders. Retained
camings includes re-measurement loss / (gain) on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss, Retained carnings is a free reserve available to
the Company and cligible for distribution Lo sharchalders, in case where it is having positive balance representing net camings Lill date

{ii) Capital contribution

Financial guaranice contracts are recognised as a financial liability at the lime of issue of guaranice. The liability is measured at fair value and subsequendly at the higher of the amount
determined in accordance with Ind AS 37 and the amount initially ised less i isation, where appropriate

‘Where guarnniee in relation to loans or other payables of subsidiary is provided for no compensation by the sharcholder, fair values of such are as capital ibution in
the books of the Company.
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2.11 Borrowings (at amortised cost)

(2)

(b)

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Non-current borrowings

Secured

Term loans from bank

- Federal bank (Refer note (a,b,c & d) below) 206.07 70.11
Total loans from bank 206.07 70.11
Unsecured

Loan from related party (refer note {e) below) 10.00 -
Total unsecured loans (B) 10.00 -
Total non-current borrowings (A) + (B) 216.07 70.11

Current borrowings (at amortised cost)

Secured

‘Working capital loans from banks (refer note f) 2392 12.35
Term loans from banks

- Federal bank (Refer note (a,b,c & d) below) 38.23 22.56
Total current borrowings 62.15 34.91
Notes:

a) Federal bank - Term loan Facility-1 is secured by way of first charge on the medical equipment, other movable assets, building
improvements and fixtures of the Company and second charge on entire current assets of the Company. The loan is repayable in 72
equated monthly instalments starting September 2019 and carries an interest rate of 8.40%-8.80% per annum (31 March 2022: 8.40% -
9.30% per annum) with annual reset (linked to 1 year MCLR).

b) Federal bank - Term loan Facility-2 is secured by way of first charge on medical equipment (minimum 1.19x cover), with 15%
margin, of the Company and second charge on entire current assets of the Company. The loan is repayable in 72 equated monthly
instalments starting April 2020 and carries an interest rate of 8.70-9.80 % per annum (31 March 2022: 8 50% - 9.50% per annurm) with
annual reset (linked to 1 year MCLR).

c) Federal bank - Term loan Facility-3 is secured by way of first charge on the medical equipment, furniture and fixture of the Company
and second charge on entire current assets of the Company. The loan is repayable in 72 equated monthly instalments starting April 2023
and carries an interest rate of 7.90%-9.00% per annum (31 March 2022: Nil per annum) with annual reset (linked to 1 year MCLR).

d) Federal bank - Term loan is hypothecate all the assets acquired or to be acquired out of the facility or loan amount in favour of the
Bank by way of first and exclusive charge as security for the repayment of facility together with interests, costs and other charges,
expenses, Further hypothecate, by way of second charge all assets as security lot the repayment of the facility and also for payment of
any other charges, interest costs and expenses payable to or incurred by the Bank in relation thereto.The loan is repayable in 60
monthly instalments and carries an interest rate of REPO+6.35 % per annum (31 March 2022: Nil per annum).

¢) Unsecured loan from related partics as at 31 March, 2023 represented loans obtained from Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences
Limited (Holding Company) and carrying interest rate of 9% p.a (refer note 2.27).

f) Working capital loan from Federal bank is secured by first charge on entire current assets of the Company with a margin of 25% on
stock and receivables and second charge on medical equipment, other movable assets, building improvements and fixtures of the
Company. Loan is repayable on demand and carries an interest rate of 8.50% per annum (31 March 2022: 9.50% per annum) with
annual reset (linked to 1 year MCLR).

g) Aggregate amount of secured loan (including current maturities of long-term borrowings) guaranteed by Directors is Rs. Nil (31
March 2022: Rs, 105.02).




Iconkurishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited

CIN: Us5110AP2018PTC108133

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless othenwisc stated)

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

2.12 Other financial liabilities (at amortised cost)

(a) Non-current

Security deposit 0.05 0.05

0.05 0.05

{b) Current
Capital creditors 238 065
Employee related liabilities* 6.69 7.53

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 126 10.06
Total 10.33 18.24

*Includes payables to related partics (refer note 2 27)

2.13 Long-term provisions

Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (refer note 2 26) 124 -
Total - - 1.24 -

2.14 Trade payables (at amortised cost)

Trade payables

- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 2 30) 835 821

- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 8552 63.48
Total 93.87 71.69

The above includes payable to related parties. (refer note 2.27)
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-90 day terms

Trade Payable Apeing Schedule as on 31 March 2023
Particulars Current but not |0 for ing periods from due date of payment Total
due <1 vear 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
(i) Total outstanding dues of micre enterprises 835 - - e = 835
and small enterprises
(i) Total outstanding dues of creditors other 64 86 20.66 - - - 85.52
than micro enterprises and small enterprises
(iii) Disputed dues of micro enterprises and - - - -
small enterprises
(iv) Disputed dues of creditors other than micro - - - *
enterprises and small enterprises
Total 93.87

Trade Payable Ageing Schedule as on 31 March 2022
Particulars Current but not | Qutstanding for folluwing periods from due date of payment Total

due < 1 year 1-2 yeary 2-3 yeurs Muore than 3 years
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro i 8.21 - - - - 8.21
and small enterprises
(i) Total outstanding dues of creditors other| 3830 25.18 - - - 63.48
than micro enterprises and small enterprises
(it} Disputed dues of micro enterprises and - - - -
small enterprises

(iv) Disputed dues of creditors other than micro - - - -
ises and small enterprises

Total 71.69

2.15 Short-term provisions

Provision for employee benefits
Compensated absences 7.83 7.90

Total 7.83 7.90

2.16 Other liabilities

(A Current
Statutory dues payable 8.83 619
Contract liabilities (refer note 2.33) 2,81 211

Other liabilities 0.46 3.20
Total 12.10 11.50
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For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
2.17  Revenue from operations
R from medical and healthcare services (refer note 2.34)
A Revenue from contract with customers
Income from hospital services 631.79 649.30
Income from sale of pharmacy 440.92 404.06
Total 1,072.71 1,053.36
B Other operating revenues
Other hospital income 0.45 1.61
Total 0.45 1.61
Total income from operations (A+B) 1,073.16 1,054.97
2,18  Other income

Interest income on:
- fixed deposits 0.03 0.03
- Income-tax refunds 0.87 -
- security deposits 0.15 -
Lease income 0.29 0.16
Liabilities no longer required written back 0.52 3.51
Miscellaneous income 3.36 1.27

Total 5.22 4.97
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2.19

2.22

223

Increase in inventories of medical consumables, drugs and surgical instruments

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Opening stock 19.49 1523
Less: Closing stock 20.31 19.49
Total (0.82) (4.26)
Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus 202.38 175.72
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 2.26) 13.69 10.99
Staff welfare expenses 1.17 1.22
Total 217.24 187.93
Finance costs
Interest expense on
- term Joans 15.98 8.59
- other loans 0.48 0.08
- loan from related party (refer note 2.27) 0.72 248
Interest expense on lease liabilities (refer note 2.25) 3.14 -
Guarantee commission expense (refer note 2.27) 1.89 0.52
Others 0.20 0.13
Total 22.41 11.80
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note no 2.1(a)) 26.29 17.48
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note no 2.1(b)) 1.21 1.07
Depreciation of Right-of-use assets (refer note no 2.25) 438 -
Total 31.88 18.55
Other expenses
Consultancy charges 286.87 206.70
House keeping expenses 57.88 45.77
Power and fuel 34.30 31.46
Catering and patient welfare 11.97 12.22
Rent (refer note 2.25) 4.90 2.57
Tests and investigations 6.22 6.35
Repairs and maintenance:
- Medical and other equipment 25.45 20,53
- Hospital building and others 13.32 1598
Printing and stationery 8.87 4.84
Audit fee 0.70 0.70
Legal and professional charges 3.01 245
Rates and taxes 4.86 1.61
Travelling and conveyance 8.86 5.42
Advertisement and publicity 1515 8.74
Communication 2.70 221
(Reversal)/provision for expected credit loss for trade receivable (net of bad debts) (22.59) 19.09
Insurance 0.33 0.64
Bank charges 232 298
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses 1.80 -
Nirector sitting fee 0.21 N
Miscellaneous 1.77 1.76
Total 468.93 392.26
Note: Payment to auditors (excluding applicable taxes)
Particulars For the year ended For the year endeil
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
0.70 0.70

Statutory audit fee




Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited

CIN: U85110AP2018PTC108133

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

2.24

Contingent liabilities and commitments

(a) Contingent liabilities

(i) On 28 February 2019, the Supreme Court of India issued a judgement which provided further guidance for companies in determining which
components of their employee's compensation are subject to statutory withholding obligations, and matching employer contribution obligations, for
Provident Fund contributions under Indian [aw. There are interpretative issues relating to the retrospective applicability of the judgement. However, from
the date of order, the Company has complied with the aforesaid Supreme court's judgement. The Company will evaluate the same and vpdate its position
for earlier years, if any on receiving further clarity on the subject.

(ii) During the earlier years, the Company had issued 12% Cumulative Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares. However, on account of
non declaration of dividend by the board, dividend amounting to Rs. 11.40 (31 March 2022 Rs. 12.00) and cumulative dividend amounting to Rs. 47.83
(31 March 2022: Rs. 36.43), is not accrued during the year.

Notes:
a) Pending resolution of respective proceedings, it is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of the cash flow, if any, in respect of the
above as it is determinable only on receipt of judgments/decisions pending with various forums/authorities

b) The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as
contingent liabilities where applicable in its financial statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceeding to have a materjally
adverse effect on its financial position.

(¢) Commitments

Pardiculars As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Estimated amount of contracts remuining to be executed on capital account and not provided for 183 855

(net of advances)
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2.25 Lease

The Company has lease contracts for various items of Building used in its operations. Leases of Building generally have lease terms between 8-9 years.
Generally, the Company is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets, There are several lease contracts that include extension and
termination options, which are further discussed below.

The Company also has certain leases of buildings and machinery with lease terms of 12 months or less and leases of office equipment with low value. The
Company applies the ‘short-term lease * and ‘lease of low-value assets’ recognition exemptions for these leases.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year:

Particulars Buildi Total

As at 1 April 2022 - -
Addition 41.81 41.81
Amorlization expense chaiged to P&L 4.38 4.38
As at

31 March 2023 37.43 37.43

The effective interest rate for lease liabilities ranges between 8.4% with maturiry between 2022-2031,

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included under borrowings) and the movements during the period:

Asat
31 March 2023
Opening balance as on 1 April =
Addition 41.81
Accretion of interest charged to P&L 314
Payments (5.50)
As at 31 March 39.45
Current 2.79
Non-current 36.66
The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:
As at
31 March 2023
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 438
Interest expense on lease liabilities 314
Expense relating to short-term leases and low-value assets (included in other expenses)* 4.90
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 12.42

The Company had total cash outflows for leases of Rs. 10.40 in 31 March 2023.

*The Company has residential premises under cancellable operating leases. The Company intends to renew such lease in the normal course of business.
Total rental expenses under cancellable operating lease amounted to Rs, 4.90 (31 March 2022 Rs. 2.57). The same are grouped under other expenses in the
staternent of profit and loss

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. These options are negotiated by management to provide flexibility
in managing the leased-asset portfolio and align with the Company’s busi needs. Manag, t exercises significant judgement in determining whether
these extension and termination options are reasonably certain to be exercised,

Set out below are the undiscounted potential future rental payments:

As at

31 March 2023

Within one year 6.00
Between one and five years 26.63
After more than five years 22,40

Total 55.02
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2.26

®

Employee benefits

Defined benefit plan

The Company operate post-employment defined benefit plan that provides for gratuity. The Company accrues gratuity as per the provisions of the payment of
Gratuity Act, 1972 as applicable as at the balance sheet date. The gratuity plan entitles an employee, who has rendered at least five years of continuous
services, to receive one-half month's salary for each year of completed services at the time of retirement/exit. The gratuity fund is administered by trust formed
for this purpose and is managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India. The Company's obligation in respect of gratuity plan, which is a defined benefit plan is
provided for based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method.

A Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in

the Company'’s fi ial st ts as at the balunce sheet date:

Particulars " Asaf
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Defined benefit obligation 855 5.69

Fair value of plan assets 7.31 6.99

Net defined benefit liability 1.24 (1.30)

Current - (1.30)

Non-current 1.24 -

B Reconciliation of net defined benefit obligation

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit (assets) / liability and its components.

i) Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit oblig:
Particulars Asat sy
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Defined benefit obligation as at beginning of the year 5.69 3.20
Current service cost 2.33 1.63
Interest cost 0.36 0.19
Actuarinl (gains) / losses recognised in other comprehensive income
- Changes in financial assumptions (0.41) (0.14)
- experience adjustments 1.26 0.90
Benefits paid (0.16) (0.08)
Linbilitics assumed / (settled) (0.52) -
Defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 8.55 5.69
ii) Reconciliation to fuir value of plan assets
N As at As at
Particulars
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Plan assets at beginning of the year 6.99 0.04
Contributions paid into the plan - 6.79
Interest on plan assets 0.47 0.03
Actual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets 0.01 0.20
Benefits paid 0.16) (0.08)
Plan assets at end of the year 7.31 6.99
C i) Expenses recognised in the t of profit and loss
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current service cost 233 1.63
Interest on defined benefit obligation / plan assets (net) (0.11) 0.16
Net gratuity cost, inchrded in 'employee benefits expense' 2.22 1.79
C ii) R ts recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI)
Parti For the year ended For the year ended
articulars
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Actuarial loss on net defined benefit obligation (0.84) (0.55)
D Plan assets
Plan assets comprises of the following:
. As at As a(
farficuinss 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
7.31 6.99

Fund managed by Insurer
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2.25

@i

()

Employee benefits (continued)

D Defined benefit obligation
a) Actuarial assumptions
The following are the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):

Principal actuarial assumptions Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Discount rate 7.30% 6.25%
Salary escalation rate 8.00% 8.00%
Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
Particolars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1st following year 1.72 0.01
Year 2 m S 549 418
Year6to 9 275 2.15
247 2.07

Year 10 and above

At 31 March 2023, the weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 4.38 years.

b) Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the
amounts shown below:

Particulars For the year ended 31 March 2023 For the year ended 31 March 2022
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

Diseount rate (1% movement) (16.73) 0.38 (11.08) 033

Salary escalation rate (1% movement) 0.38 (16.73) 0.32 (11.08)

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does not provide an approximation of the
sensitivity of the assumption shown.

Defined contribution plan
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss towards contribution to
i) Provident fund 8.74 6.43
ii) Employee state insurance 3.25 2.77

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits received Presidential assent
in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified
and the final rules/interpretation have not yet been issued. The Company is assessing the impact of the Code and will record any related impact in the
period of the Code becomes effective.
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2.27  Related party disclosures
() Parties where contral exists oy where sigmificant influence exists and with whom transaciions have tuken place during the current year

Nature of relationship Name of related parties
Key management persennel (KMP) Chebrolu Harini, Director
Bollineni Abhinay, Director
Satish Kumar Pethakamsetty, Managing Director
Titty Sai Balaram Krishna, Wholetime Director
Swama Ram Mohan, Director
Sanapala Srinivas, CFO
Rajeswara Rao Gandu, Director
Satyanarayana Raju N, Director
Sravani GSA, Company Secretary (regined w.e f 31 May 2022)
Holding Company Krishna Institute of Medical Sci Limited
Fellow Subsidiary KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private Limited
Asunodaya Hospital Private Limited
(b) Transactions with related partics
| . For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
f Dy Titty Sai Balaram Krichnn
Consultancy charges 5.00 5.00
ii.  Dr. Satish Kumar Pethakamsetty
Consultancy charges 14.00 14.00
iii. Sanapala Srinivas
Enployee benefits expense® 110 0.98
iv. SravaniGSA
Employee benefits expense* 014 083
v.  Kims Hospital Kurnool Private Limited
Purchase of Pharmacy items - 0.07
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 0.70 -
vi. Rajeswara Rao Gandu
Director sitting fee 012 012
vii, Satyanarayana Raju N
Director sitting fee 012 012
viii. Arunodaya Hospitals private Limited
Income from pharmacy - 0.08
Purchase of pharmacy items - 012
ix. Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
Loan received 70.00 -
Repayment of loan 60,00 85.00
Guarantee commission expense 189 052
Corporate guarantee closed 170.00 -
Interest expenses on loan taken 0.72 248
Purchase of Pharmacy items 475 7.52
Income from pharmacy and other services 004 154
Redenmption of preferance shares 5.00
Dividend on redemption of preferance shares 257 -
(¢) The balances receivable from and payable to related parties
Particulars As a¢ Azt
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
i.  Dr. Titty Sai Balaram Krishna
Consultancy charges payable 042 0.37
ii.  Dr. Satish Kumar Pelhakamsetty
Consultancy charges payable 117 1.05
i Rajeswara Rao Gandu
Director sitting fees 0.03 012
iv. Satyanarayana Raju N
Director sitting fees 003 0.12
v.  Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
Loan payable 10.00 -
Corporate guarantee received - 170,00
Guarantee commission asset - 1.89
Interest payable on unsecured loan 004 9.74
Trade payables 104 1.83

*The key managerial personnel are covered by the Company's gratuity policy and are eligible for leave encashment along with other employees of the
Company. The proportionate amount of gratuity and leave encashment pertaining to the managerial personnel has not been included in the
aforementioned disclosures as these are determined on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole

Terms and conditions:

All transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year end
are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash, There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or
payables. For the above year ended, the Company has nat recorded any impairment of receivables relating to owed by related parties This
assessment is undertaken on a forward-looking basis at each reporting period end through examining the historical information and financial position of
the related party that is adjusted to reflect current conditions of market in which the related party operates as well as information about forecasts of
future economic conditions
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2.28 Earnings per sharve (EPS)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Earnings per share of par value Rs. 10 each - Diluted (Rs.)

farticulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Earnings
Profit / (loss) for the year atiributable to equity shareholders 66.50 153.81
Less: Dividend payable to preference shareholders (11.40) (12.00)
Profit / (loss) considered for EPS calculation 55.10 141.81
Shares
Number shares at the beginning of the year 10,000 10,000
Add: Equity shares issued during the year - 2
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 10,000 10,000
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year - Basic 10,000 10,000
Weighted average number of equity shares arising out of issue of potential equity shares 95,00,000 1,00,00,000
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year - Diluted 95,10,000 1,00,10,000
Earnings per share of par value Rs, 10 each - Basic (Rs.) 5,509.92 14,181.00
5.79 14.17
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2.29 Segment information

2.30

The Managing Director of the Company lakes decision in respect of allocation of resources and assesses the performance basis the report/ information
provided by functional heads and are thus considered to be Chief Operating Decision Maker.

Based on the Company's business model, medical and healthcare services have been considered as a single business segment for the purpose of making
decision on allocation of resources and assessing its performance. Accordingly, there are no separate reportable segments in accordance with the
requirements of Ind AS 108 ‘Operating segment’ and hence, there are no additional disclosures to be provided other than those already provided in the
Financial Statements. Presently, the Company’s operations are predominantly confined in India. There are no individual custorer contributing more
than 10% of Company's total revenue. All non-current assets other than financial instruments, deferred tax assets, post-employment benefit assets of the
Company are located in India.

Due to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and
Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the
Memorandum. Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amount payable to such enterprises as at 31 March 2022 has been made in the financial
statements based_on_information received and available with the Company. Further, in view of the Management, the impact of interest, if any, that may.
be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (The MSMED Act) is not expected
to be material. The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier.

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

The amounts remaining unpaid to micro and small supplier as at end of the year

- Principal 8.35 821

= Interest - -

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount. of the - -
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year;

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest = -
specified under the MSMED Act,

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and - -

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until
such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises for lhe - -

purpase of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the MSMED Act
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2.31 Capital management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a stable capital base so as to maintain investor and creditor confidence and to sustain future development of the
business. Management monitors capital on the basis of return on capital employed as well as the 'net debt' to ‘total equity' ratio.

For this purpose, net debt is defined as total borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents. Total equity comprises all components of equity excluding
capital contribution.
The Company's net debt to equity ratio as of 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 was as follows:

Particulars Asat Asat
‘31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Borrowings 317.65 105.02
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 3.37 7.92
Net debt 314.28 97.10
Total sguies 25597 19767
Net debt to equity rafio - Gearing ratio 81.45% 203.58%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants
attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would
permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and
borrowing in the current year.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.
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2.32 Financial instruments : Fair value and risk management

A. Accounting classification and fair values

As at 31 March 2023 Carrving Value Fair Value Fair value level
Financial assets at amortised cost (Refer note below)
Trade receivables 192,55 192,55
Cash and cash equivalents 3.37 337
Other financial assets 9.58 9.58
Total 205.50 205.50
Financial liabilities a¢ amortised cost (Refer note below) level 3
Long-term borrowings (excluding current maturities) 216.07 216.07
Short-term borrowings 62.15 62.15
Lease liabilities 3945 3945
Trade payables 93.87 93.87
Other financial liabilities 10.38 10.38
|Total 421.92 421.92°
As at 31 Murch 2022 Carrying Value Fair Value Fuir value level
Financial assets at amortised cost (Refer note below)
Trade receivables 111.24 111.24
Cash and cash equivalents 7.92 7.92
Other financial assets 11.26 11.26
Total 130.42 130.42
e T e . level 3
Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Refer note below)
Long-term borrowings (excluding current maturities) 70.11 70.11
Short-term borrowings 3491 3491
Trade payables 71.69 71.69
Other financial liabilities 18,29 18,29
Total 195.00 195.00

Note for financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost:

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, other financials assets, other financial liabilities, short term borrowings and cash and
cash equivalents and bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-

term nature.

The fair values of long term borrowings are based on discounted cash flows using a current borrowing rate. They are classified as level 3 fair

value hierarchy due to the use of unobservable inputs including own credit risk
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2.32  Financial instruments : Fair value and risk management

B. Financial risk management
The Company’s activities exposc it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk.

(i) Risk management framework
The Company's Board of Directors have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls to monitor risks
and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and Company's activities. The Company,
through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all the employees understand their

roles and obligations.

The Company's Board of Directors oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy
of risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Board of Directors is assisted in its oversight role by the intemal audit. Internal audit
undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported (o the Board of Directors.

(ii) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to financial loss. The credit risk arises
principally from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its investing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions and other financial
instruments. The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the masximum credit risk exposure

Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limits to whom credit has been granted after obtaining necessary approvals for credit. The collection from the trade receivables are
monitored on a continuous basis by the receivables tearn.

The Company establishes an allowance for credit loss that represents its estimate of expected losses in respect of trade receivables based on the past and the recent collection
trend. The maximum exposure to credit risk as at reporting date is primarily from trade receivables amounting to Rs. 214,96 (31 March 2022: Rs. 156.55) The movement in
allowance for credit loss in respect of trade and other receivables during the year was as follows:

As at As at
Allowance for credit losses '31 March 2023 31 March 2022
39.64 22,15

Opening balance

Credit loss added (22.59) 17.49
Closing balance 17.05 39.64
- 1.60

Trade receivable write off not routed through the above movement

The Group uses a provision matrix to determine the expected credit lass on the portfolio of its trade receivables and contract assets. The provision matrix is based on its
historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and contract assets and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. The expected credit loss
allowance is based on the ageing of the days the receivables are due in the provision matrix. Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure of the Group’s
trade receivables and contract asset using provision matrix:

0-180 days due past More than 180 days Gross trade

Not past due due date past due date receivables and

contract assets
For the year ended 31 March 2023 123.57 5499 36.40 214,96
For the year ended 31 March 2022 73.78 43.13 39.64 156.55

Customer Concentration
No single customer represents 10% or more of the Company’s total revenue during the year ended 31 March 2023 and year ended 31 March 2022. Therefore the customer

concentration risk is limited due to the large and unrelated customer base.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalent is limited as the Group generally transacts with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by intemational and
domestic credit rating agencies.

(iii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset. The Company has an established liquidity risk management framework for managing its short term, medium term and long term funding and liquidity
management requirements, The Company's exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities. The Company
manages the liquidity risk by maintaining adequate funds in cash and cash equivalents. The Company also has adequate credit facilities agreed with banks to ensure that there
is sufficient cash to meet all its normal operating commitments in a timely and cost-effective manner.

The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of 31 March 2023:

Particulars Carrving Value Less than 1 year 1 -5 years More than 5 years Total
Long-term borrowings 216.07 - 191.84 24.29 216.13
Short-term borrowings 62.15 62.15 - - 62.15
Lease liabilities 39.45 6.00 26.63 22.40 55.02
Trade payables 93.87 93.87 - - 93.87
Other fi ial liabilities 10.38 10.33 - 0.05 10.38
Total 421.92 172.35 218.46 46.74 437.55

The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of 31 March 2022:

Parficulars Carrying Value Less than 1 vear 1 -5 vears More than 5 vears Total
Long-term borrowings 70.11 - 70.24 - 70.24
Short-term borrowings 3491 34.91 - - 3491
Trade payables 71,69 71.6%9 - - 71.69
Other financial liabilities 18.29 18.24 - 0.05 18.29
Total 195.00 124.85 70.24 0.05 195.14

The Company has secured loans from bank that contain loan covenants, A future breach of covenant may require the Company to repay the loan earlier than indicated in the
above table,
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2.32  Financial instruments : Fair value and risk management (continued)

(iv) Market risk

(a) Interest rate risk expesure

The exposure of the Company's borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Variable rate long term borrowings including current maturities and short term borrowings 26822 105.03
Total borrowings 268.22 105.03
(b) Cash flow sensitivity analysis
Impact c;:s groﬁt and Equity, net of tax Impact (;:sls)roﬁt and Equity, net of tax

Rarieutaes For the year For the year For the year For the year

31 March 2023 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2022
Sensitivity
1% increase in MCLR (2.68) (2.01) (1.05) (0.76)
1% decrease in MCLR 2.68 2.01 1.05 0.76

The interest rate sensitivity is based on the closing balance of secured term loans and working capital loans from bank.

{v) Currency risk
The Company is not exposed to currency risk.
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2.33 Income-tax

ived in the statement of profit and loss

a. Amount reco
For the vear ended  For the year ended 31
31 March 2023 March 2022
Current lax 1625 5962
Deferred tax attributable (o temporary differences 747 (11.52)
Adjustments for tax relating to carlicr years {0 68) -
Tax expenses for the year 23.05 48.10
b, Amount recognised in other comprehensive income
For the year 31 March 2023 For the year 31 March 2022
Before tax Tax (expense)/ Net of tax Before tax Tax (expense)/ Net of tax
benefit henefit
Re-measurement on dcfined benefit plans (0.84) 021 (0.63) (0.55) al1s5 0,39)
e, Reconcilintiun of eiTective tax rate
For the year ended For the year ended 31
31 March 2013 March 2012
Profit / (loss) before tax 89.54 201.91
Enugied G rales 25.17% 27.82%
Tax expense al enacted rates 2254 56.17
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible/ (taxable) in calculating taxable income
Deferred tax of earlicr years, created in current year based on certainity - (247}
Adjustments for tax relating (o carlier ycars 0.99 -
Others (0.49) 140
Total 23,04 48.10
d. Recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities
i) Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the followin
Particulars Asat As i
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Deferved tax assets
Expected credit loss for trade receivables 429 11.03
Pravision for employee benefils 384 570
Others 0.51 0.44
Tolal deferred tax asset 8.64 1717
Deferred tax liabilities
| Property, plant and equipment (liability) 941 550
Cithers - -
Totul deferred tax liabilities 941 5.50|
Deferred tax (liability)/ asset (net) 0.77) 11.67
{ii) Movement in temporary differences
Particulars .. - Minimum
e, | Mot | st tas | | oo 1
receivables benefits (MAT) credit (liability) liabilities
Balance as at 1 April 2021 0.16 37 (3.04) (0.88) 16.27
Recognised in profit or loss during the vear 10.87 1.78 - (2.46) 1.32 11,51
Recognised in OCI during the year . 0.15 - - - 015
Others . - (16.26) 2 3 (16.26)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 11.03 5.70 - (550) 0.44 11.67
Recognised in profit or loss during the vear (6.74) (2.07) - @391 0.07 (12.65)
Recognised in OCI during the year - 021 - - - 0.21
|Balance as at 31 March 2023 4.29 3.84 - (9.41) 0.51 (0.77)
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2.34 Revenue from contracts with customers:

Disaggregated revenue information
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers:

For the year ended 31 For the year ended
Particulars March 2023 31 March 2022
Income from hospital services 631.79 649.30
Income from sale of pharmacy 440.92 404.06
Total revenue from contracts with customers 1,072.71 1,053.36
India 1,072.71 1,053.36
Outside India - -
Timing of revenue recognition
Services transferred over time 631.79 649.30
Goods transferred at a point of time 440.92 404.06
Total revenue from contracts with customers 1,072.71 1,053.36
Reconciliation of revenue recognised with the contracted price is as follows:
Contract price 1,176.28 1,142.32
Less: Discounts and disallowances (103.57) (88.98)
Total revenue from contracts with customers 1,072.71 1,053.36
Contract balances
Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Trade receivables 192.55 111.24
Contract assets 5.36 5.67
Contract liabilities 2.81 2:11

Contract liability: During the financial year ended 31 March 2023, the company has recognised revenue of Rs. 2.11 from advance received from patients
outstanding as on 31 March 2022, During the financial year ended 31 March 2022, the company has recognised revenue of Rs. 2.13 from advance

received from patients outstanding as on 31 March 2021.

Contract asset: During the financial year ended 31 March 2023, the company has transferred Rs. 5.67 of contract assets as at 31 March 2022 to trade
receivables on completion of performance obligation. During the financial year ended 31 March 2022, the company has transferred Rs, 4.23 of contract

assets as at 31 March 2021 to trade receivables on completion of performance obligation.
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2.35 Consequent to the requirements of Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, the Company has made contributions as stated below. The same is in line with

activities specified in Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013 and activities approved by the CSR
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 1.80 -
b) Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year 1.80 -
¢) Amount spent during the year ending on 31 March 2023: In cash Yet to be paid in Total
cash
i) Construction/acquisition of any asset - - -
i) On purposes other than (i) above 180 - 1.80
Asat31 Asat31
March 2023 March 2022
e) Details related to spent / unspent obligations:
i) Contribution to Public Trust - -
ii)_ Contribution to Charitable Trust __ 1.80 -
iii) Unspent amount in refation to: - -
- Ongoing project - -
- Other than ongoing project - -

1.80 =
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2.36 Goodwill

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
55,98 55.98

Balance at the beginning and end of the year

For impairment testing, goodwill (acquired through business combinations and on consolidation) has been allocated to the Medical and Healthcare Services CGU.

The Company performed its annual impairment test for years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.

Medical and Health Care CGU
The recoverable amount of the CGU, has been determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections from financial budgets approved by the

Management covering a five year period. The pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections for impairment testing during the years is stated in the below table
and cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using a long term growth rate as stated in the below table that is the same as the long-term average growth
rate for the Medical and Health care industry,

The fullowing table sets out the key sssumption for the Cash G ing Unit ("CGL") for perfurming the annual impairment test:
For the year ended For the year ended
| 31 Margh 2023 31 March 2022
Discount rate 12,69% 12:20%
Leng term growth rate l 5.00% 5.00%

The discount rate is based on the Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC) which represents the weighted average return attributable to all the assets of the CGU,

There is no impairment noted in the Medical and Healthcare Services CGU based on the assessment performed by the Manag t. Manag has performed
sensitivity analysis around the base ption and have concluded that no reasonable possible change in key assumptions would cause the recoverable amount of the

Medical and Healthcare Services CGU lower than the carrying amount of CGU.

The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. The Company does not have
any unhedged foreign currency exposure as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.
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2.39 Other Statutory Information

(i) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

(ii) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.

(iii) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

(iv) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto cwrency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(v) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediarics) with the understanding that the
Intermediary shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(vi) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or
otherwise) that the Company shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiarics,

(vii) The Company do not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(viii _The_ Company has not been_declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

(ix) The Company has not declared/paid any dividend during the year.

2.40 Significant events after the reporting year
There were no significant adjusting events that occurred subsequent to the reporting year.
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